UNITED
NATIONS

CERD

SOLEMN DECLARATI ON BY THE NEWY ELECTED MEMBERS OF THE COWM TTEE UNDER RULE 14

International Convention on
the Elimination

of all Forms of 2 April 1998
Racial Discrimination

Di str.
GENERAL

CERD/ C/ SR. 1253

ENGLI SH

Oiginal: FRENCH

COW TTEE ON THE ELI M NATI ON OF RACI AL DI SCRI M NATI ON
Fifty-second session
SUMVARY RECORD OF THE 1253rd MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Friday, 6 March 1998, at 10 a.m

Chai r man: M. ABOUL- NASR

CONTENTS

OF THE RULES OF PROCEDURE (conti nued)

CONS| DERATI ON OF REPORTS, COMMENTS AND | NFORMATI ON SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES

UNDER ARTI CLE 9 OF THE CONVENTI ON (conti nued)

Thirteenth periodic report of the Netherlands (continued)

Revi ew of the inplenentation of the Convention in Antigua and Barbuda

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submitted in one
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so
record. They should be sent within one week
Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Pal ais des Nati ons,

the O ficial

Any corrections to the records of the public nmeetings of the Commttee

at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendumto be issued

of the working |anguages.
i ncorporated in a copy of the
of the date of this docunent to

shortly after the end of the session

GE. 98- 15507

(B)



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1253
page 2

CONTENTS (conti nued)

PREVENTI ON OF RACI AL DI SCRI M NATI ON, | NCLUDI NG EARLY WARNI NG MEASURES AND
URGENT ACTI ON PROCEDURES (conti nued)

Consideration of the situation in Bosnia and Herzegovi na

Consideration of the situation in the Denpcratic Republic of the Congo

Consideration of the situation in Kosovo

ORGANI ZATI ONAL AND OTHER MATTERS (conti nued)

M ssion of M. Yutzis to Guatemala




CERD/ C/ SR. 1253
page 3

The neeting was called to order at 10.15 a.m

SOLEMN DECLARATI ON BY THE NEW.Y ELECTED MEMBERS OF THE COVWM TTEE UNDER RULE 14
OF THE RULES OF PROCEDURE (agenda item 2) (continued)

1. The CHAI RMAN wel coned Ms. McDougall as a new nenber of the Conmittee,
whose arrival had been del ayed owing to her participation in a conference on
raci al discrimnation which had just taken place in South Africa.

2. In accordance with rule 14 of the rules of procedure, Ms. MDOUGALL, as
a newy elected nmenber of the Comm ttee, nade the follow ng solem
decl arati on:

“l solemly declare that | will performny duties and exercise ny
powers as a menber of the Commttee on the Elimnation of Racia
Di scrimnation honourably, faithfully, inpartially and conscientiously.”

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS, COMMENTS AND | NFORMATI ON SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES
UNDER ARTI CLE 9 OF THE CONVENTI ON (agenda item 7) (continued)

Thirteenth periodic report of the Netherlands (continued) (CERD ¢/ 319/ Add. 2
HRI / CORE/ 1/ Add. 66, 67 and 68)

3. At the invitation of the Chairman, the delegation of the Netherl ands
took places at the Conmittee table.

4. M. HALFF (Netherlands), Head of the Legal and Social Affairs Division
M nistry of Foreign Affairs, said that before replying to the questions
rai sed, he wi shed to nake a few general conments.

5. Firstly, sone mnistries responsible nore specifically for judicial
matters, educational policy and housing were not represented in the del egation
and it was not possible, therefore, to reply inmediately to the questions
relating to those areas. His delegation would rmake sure that answers were
provided in the next report, taking account of the Comrittee' s reconmendati ons
as well as the coments from non-governnental organizations (NGOs).

6. Sone Conmittee nenbers had criticized the periodic report of the

Net her |l ands (CERD/ C/ 319/ Add. 2) for covering too long a period and citing too
much ol d data, while others had felt that it was not sufficiently conplete on
certain aspects. The Netherlands had endeavoured to stri ke a bal ance between
t horoughness and readability, but that was not al ways easy. Regarding the
consi stency of term nology, a greater effort would be made in future, but the
use of different expressions was sonetines unavoi dabl e when dealing with

di fferent contexts or different |aws.

7. In reply to the nenbers of the Committee who regretted that the report
referred only to the outcone of elections in the distant past, he w shed to
poi nt out that nunicipal elections had been scheduled for 4 March and woul d
provi de an opportunity to undertake a nore up-to-date review



CERD/ C/ SR. 1253
page 4

8. Lastly, he would say to the nenbers who encouraged the Netherl ands
Governnment to cooperate nore with NGOs that such cooperation m ght be seen as
pl acing a constraint on the independence and freedom of expression of the NGOs
concer ned.

9. M. JACOBS (Netherlands), Netherlands Antilles Bureau of Foreign

Rel ations, said that he woul d endeavour to respond nore specifically to the
questions which came within his field of expertise. To put those questions in
their proper context, he wished to give sonme information about the historica
and denographi c devel opnent of the Netherlands Antilles. Although sparsely
popul at ed around 1900, the Netherlands Antilles had subsequently attracted
immgrants of all origins, but mainly fromthe Caribbean regi on, when an oi
refinery had been built in Curagao in the 1920s. That had led to a

consi derabl e m xi ng of peoples, which neant that it was not easy today froma
nmet hodol ogi cal point of viewto prepare statistics differentiated with regard
to ethnic origin.

10. For that reason the Netherlands Antilles had traditionally chosen to
apply the criteria of place of birth or nationality to distinguish between
nati onal s and migrants, although the use of those criteria mght not always
bring to light discrimnation in all its formns.

11. He hoped that those explanations would satisfy M. Diaconu. In answer
to the latter's question on the age structure of the m grant popul ation, he
indicated that in 1992 the 15-64 age group represented 88 per cent of the
total mgrant population in St. Maarten, reflecting a high proportion of
economi cally active mgrants.

12. The fact that m grants had a |l ower inconme |evel than the rest of the
popul ati on coul d be explained quite easily. Mst of them in particular those
fromthe Caribbean, were enployed in light industrial and hotel or restaurant
jobs, as well as in donestic service, where wages were low, resulting in a | ow
average incone for the total mgrant group

13. Wth regard to education, it was a fact that school facilities,
particularly in St. Maarten, were insufficient to cope with the large influx
of migrant children. The island was snall and the education budget was
limted, although its share in the total budget had increased substantially in
recent years. Mgrant workers had for that reason been allowed to establish
sonme private el enentary schools, which coexisted with the public schools, but
that was admittedly not the ideal solution

14. Lastly, he greatly regretted that he did not have the necessary data to
provi de an i medi ate answer to the question concerning rulings on foreign
domestic workers, as referred to in paragraph 357 of the report. He hoped
that some information could be provided in that regard in the next report.

15. Ms. KESSELS (Netherlands), Netherlands Antilles Bureau of Foreign
Rel ations, replied to the questions from M. Diaconu concerning the second
part of the report dealing with Aruba.

16. The Aruban popul ation was a m xture of Anerican Indian, European and
African heritage. All people born on Aruba of a nother or father with



CERD/ C/ SR. 1253
page 5

Net herl ands nationality automatically acquired Netherlands nationality by
birth, but that nationality could also be acquired in the course of tinme by
immgrants of all origins. The popul ation had thus become so m xed that it
was now difficult to speak of national minorities. One consequence was that
many of those Netherlands nationals did not have Dutch as their first

| anguage, but spoke the | ocal |anguage, Papiamento. However, education was
still provided in Dutch in nost schools, thereby enabling pupils, if they so
wi shed, to continue their studies in Dutch universities. A system of

bi li ngual education was currently under consideration and Papi anento coul d be
taught in primary schools. A bill on official |anguages had been drafted with
the objective of pronpbting the witten use of Papianmento, in particular by

adm ni strative bodies. For practical reasons, however, Dutch would remain the
| anguage of the judiciary and legislation. It should be pointed out that the
i nhabitants of Aruba were conpletely free to use whatever |anguage they
desired and there was no discrimnation on that basis, which would be contrary
to the Constitution.

17. On the question of the admi ssion quotas referred to by M. Diaconu, she
said that only persons of Netherlands nationality had free entry to the
island. Al other persons needed a residence permt, which was issued only in
connection with a work permt, the latter normally being provided for
occupations where there was a | abour shortage (for exanple, donmestic service).
That restrictive policy was due to the fact that Aruba was a small island
which had a limted infrastructure and had in recent years experienced

accel erated popul ati on growth

18. Some adni ssion quotas based on nationality had been applied in the past
to deal with the influx of inmmigrants fromHaiti and the Domi ni can Republic.
However, those quotas had been deened discrinminatory and had been abolished
about five years ago

19. M. TILMANS (Netherlands), Mnistry of Internal Affairs, replying to a
guestion from M. Diaconu, explained that the Netherlands had given sone
responsibility for conbating racial discrinmnation and prompting tolerance to
menbers of civil society, including enployers, schools and other institutions,
because it was convinced of the value of self-regulation in that field. That
approach had, noreover, inspired the Equal Treatment Act, which was di scussed
at length in the core docunent of the Netherlands (HRI/CORE/ 1/ Add. 66). That
Act gave individuals or organizations representing their interests the
possibility of filing a conplaint with the Equal Treatment Comm ssion if they
felt that violations had been commtted. The functioning of the Comm ssion
woul d be evaluated in 1998 and its authority would be extended if that
appeared necessary.

20. Several questions had been asked about imm gration policy and the
treatment of migrants and mnorities

21. Net herl ands | aw did, of course, prohibit discrimnation on the ground of
nationality. The policy of integration of newcomers was in no way intended to
blur cultural differences and sought instead to pronote tol erance and mutua
acceptance. There was, however, bound to be sonme degree of assimlation in

t he course of tine.



CERD/ C/ SR. 1253
page 6

22. He wi shed to clear up a m sunderstanding regarding the bill on the
integration of immgrants that was currently under discussion in the Upper
House of the Parliament. The legislation would apply to all immgrants with

t he exception of European Union citizens, tourists and persons staying
tenporarily in the Netherlands on the basis of a working contract. It also
covered persons with Netherlands nationality com ng to the Netherlands for the
first tinme (for exanple, from Aruba or other countries outside the European
region).

23. Lastly, the Frisian mnority was not mentioned in the report because it
was not an ethnic mnority but a well-defined territorial mnority with its
own | anguage and cul ture.

24. He shared M. Banton's opinion regarding the useful ness of reliable and
conpar abl e statistics on ethnic mnorities, but one of the problens in that
regard was that menbers of minorities no | onger wished to be considered as
such once they acquired Netherlands nationality. That made it difficult to
identify themw thout interfering with their privacy. The issue of whether
the rul es concerning respect for privacy should be anmended had, however, been
rai sed.

25. Ms. GORIS (Netherlands), Mnistry of Health, Welfare and Sport, said
that her Governnent regarded sport as a good way of conmbating discrimnation

inall its fornms and had organi zed a round table conference on sport,
tol erance and fair play in Arsterdamin April 1996, which had been attended by
al nost all other European countries. |In accordance with the Declaration

i ssued by the Conference, a four-year Governnent-subsidi zed action plan woul d
be conducted in the Netherlands with the help of sports and educati ona

organi zations and with support from | eadi ng Netherlands conmpanies. A specia
foundati on had been established to execute the plan. It could therefore be
seen that the Governnent was not reneging on its responsibilities, as
apparently feared by M. Yutzis, who saw the information given in

paragraphs 31 to 34 of the report as an exanple of disengagenment of the State,
or even “deregul ati on”

26. Regardi ng access to health-care services, it was true that only legally
residing immgrants could take part in health insurance schenmes. That did not
mean, however, that nedical care was inaccessible for illegal inmgrants, but

they were expected to pay for such services. That rule, pronpted by concern
to keep health spending under control, was neverthel ess tenpered for needy
persons, who could w thout charge receive “essential” health-care services,
whi ch included enmergency treatnment in |ife-endangering situations, prevention
of loss of essential functions, care in situations where a danger to the
health of third parties existed, maternity care and preventive youth health
care, as well as vaccination programmes. The state of the patient and degree
of urgency were evaluated by the nedical doctor, and, if treatnment was

consi dered essential, the care provider could obtain reinbursement froma
new y-founded private fund.

27. M. van BONZEL (Netherlands), Mnistry of Social Affairs and Enpl oynent,
expl ai ned for the benefit of M. Diaconu and M. Yutzis, who had expressed
interest in the results achieved with the Act Governing the Pronotion of
Proportional Participation in the Enpl oynent Market for Imrgrants of 1994,



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1253
page 7

that the Act laid down three obligations for enployers: the introduction of
specific registration of their personnel, the drawing up of public annua
reports and the formulation of an internal work plan. It appeared from

eval uations made in 1996 and 1997 that only 14 per cent of enployers had net
all three obligations. However, 57 per cent had observed the first
requirenent, even if it was seen as a purely admnistrative matter

28. In Novenber 1996, enployers' and enpl oyees' organizations had drawn up

a new agreenent replacing the 1990 “M norities Agreenent” to encourage the
access of ethnic mnorities to enploynent. They had then advised the
Governnment to change the 1994 Act in order to make it nore conducive to the

i npl enmentation of the new agreenent, as well as to render it nore effective by
reduci ng the adm nistrative burden on enpl oyers. Under the Act once amended,

t he enpl oyer woul d have to nake only one report instead of two, as before, and
enforcenent of the Act would be based on civil law instead of crimnal |aw
The new Act woul d be called the “SAMEN Act” and enployers' conpliance with it
woul d be nonitored by the Labour Inspectorate. The proposed |egislation

enj oyed broad political support and was expected to be passed by the
Parliament during the current year.

29. In reply to M. Diaconu, who had inquired about the steps taken by the
Government of the Netherlands to conbat rising unenpl oynent, which was
affecting nenbers of ethnic mnorities despite the introduction of the Act
Governing the Pronmotion of Proportional Participation in the Enploynent ©Market
for Immgrants, said that the SAMEN Act was intended to renedy that very
problem In order to conbat discrimnation in recruitnment, selection

di smi ssal and ternms of enploynent, the General Act on Equal Treatnment all owed
for conplaints to be nmade to the Equal Treatnment Conmi ssion, which was
enpowered to initiate investigations of alleged discrimnation in enploynent
by persons or organi zations, and also to nediate. The Act guaranteed workers
invoking it protection against so-called “victimzation” dismssal or

di scrimnatory dism ssal. The Equal Treatnment Conmi ssion's report of 1996
showed that people were increasingly making use of that possibility.

30. Replying to M. Banton, he said that the Netherlands did not, like the
Uni ted Kingdom have a specific act protecting workers agai nst “racia
harassment”. However, workers were protected by the General Act on Equa

Treatment. Although the Act did not nention racial harassment, it afforded
speci fic protection against discrimnation in respect of enployment or working
conditions. The Equal Treatnent Commi ssion extended the concept of

non-di scrimnation in enploynent to protection against harassment by an

enpl oyer or by other enployees. Thus, the enployer had to ensure that his
enpl oyees refrained fromdiscrimnating agai nst their coll eagues.

31. Wth regard to the questions from M. Yutzis concerning access to

enpl oynment for ethnic mnorities, he said that there were no reliable
statistics available to determ ne whether the plans to create 60,000 jobs
within five years for ethnic mnorities, in order to nake their |abour market
position proportionally equivalent to that of the indigenous working
popul ati on, had achieved the expected results. Wat was certain, however, was
t hat enpl oynent had increased anong ethnic mnorities, although to a | esser
extent than anong the indi genous popul ati on. Enployers' and enpl oyees

organi zations attributed the setback to di sappointing econonmic growth in the



CERD/ C/ SR. 1253
page 8

early 1990s and the increase in the supply of labour fromthe ethnic
m norities, a phenonenon which could not have been foreseen

32. Concerning the figures which showed that enployment had increased

by 8 per cent anpbng ethnic minorities but that overall enploynment growth had
not been reflected in that popul ation group (CERD/ C/ 319/ Add. 2, para. 114), he
expl ai ned that those figures were quite old and did not depict the current
situation in the | abour market. The participation of ethnic mnorities in the
| abour market had actually inproved during the last few years, as indicated in
the tabl es on pages 26 and 27 of the report. Over the period 1990-1995, the

i nprovenent in enploynent had been four tines greater for the Mroccan
Tur ki sh, Surinamese and Antillean ethnic mnorities than anmong indi genous
persons, i.e. 28 per cent against 7 per cent. Nevertheless, the unenpl oynent
rate for ethnic mnorities (25 per cent) remai ned nuch higher than that for

i ndi genous persons (6.9 per cent). The slight decrease in the rate of

unenpl oyment anong nminority groups was attributable to a parallel increase in
the supply of | abour, which had risen by 8 per cent for indigenous persons but
by 25 per cent for minority groups. That phenonmenon was due to the fact that
t he denographic growmh of mnority groups - 16 per cent - was much greater
than that of the indigenous popul ation, which anbunted to only 1 per cent.

The figures available for 1993-1996 showed a strong inprovenment in the

enpl oyment rate of ethnic mnorities, which had increased by 28 per cent, as
agai nst 4 per cent for the indigenous popul ation

33. M. SHAHI congratul ated the del egati on of the Netherlands on the
exhaustiveness of the periodic report and thanked it for its oral replies
concerning the inplenentation of the Convention. He would, however, like to
know, whether the Governnent of the Netherlands was taking appropriate steps
to prevent the dissenination of racist propaganda on the Internet, in
conpliance with article 4 (a) of the Convention. Ws it planning to enact
legislation to regulate the activities of that new nmediun? If not, howdid it
intend to prevent the creation of Websites for the dissem nation of raci st

pr opaganda?

34. M. GARVALOV said that the delegation's oral replies would have nmet his
expectations far nore had they not focused disproportionately on certain
aspects. He had been surprised to hear the term"territorial mnority" for
the first tinme, and the delegation's explanation that it meant not an ethnic
mnority but a linguistic mnority hardly clarified the matter. It was
perhaps worth recalling that the General Assenbly, in the 1992 Decl aration on
the Rights of Persons Belonging to National or Ethnic, Religious and

Li nguistic Mnorities, nmentioned four types of mnority groups: national
ethnic, religious and linguistic mnorities.

35. M. YUTZIS said that, according to the annual socio-cultural survey
cited in the report, the trend towards discrimnation seened to be increasing
and a clear majority of the popul ati on was opposed to affirmative action for
ethnic mnorities. The figures given in the tables suggested to himthat the
hostility of the indigenous popul ation towards ethnic mnorities had decreased
during the period 1985-1990 as conpared with the |l evels before and after that
period. He would like the delegation to explain that devel opnent in

anti-inmm grant sentinent.



CERD/ C/ SR. 1253
page 9

36. He al so noted fromthe report (paras. 130 and 131) that, in order to
ensure that itinerants were treated like all other Netherlands citizens, the
authorities were planning to anend the Caravan Act of 1968, as it was no

| onger in keeping with current housing policy. Considering that, on the one
hand, the majority of the population was hostile to affirmative action on
behal f of ethnic minorities and that, on the other, the Caravan Act was said
to have discrimnatory effects against the great nmgjority of the Netherlands
popul ati on, he was not sure that the provisions being contenplated woul d not
be counter-productive. Was it certain that the principal beneficiaries of the
new | egi slation would be itinerants and not the majority indi genous
popul ati on?

37. He woul d also like to have nore informati on about the nomadi ¢ groups
concerned, including their nunber and identity, and to have confirmation that
the provisions envisaged woul d not deprive them of any historical advantages.
Consi dering the specific and delicate nature of the question, he would
understand very well that the Netherlands del egation mght wish to revert to
it later.

38. M. de GOUTTES noted fromthe report (para. 151) that the State was
continuing to provide grants to establishnments associated with politica
parties hol ding racist views because the establishnments in question had not
been banned, by court order, on the grounds that they were a threat to public
order. VWhile he could understand that the Netherlands authorities were
hesitant, out of respect for freedom of expression, to close such
establishnents, he nevertheless felt that it was too prudent and restrictive
to continue allocating public funds to establishnments associated with parties
that violated the provisions of article 4 (b) of the Convention.

39. M. HALFF (Netherlands) said that it was difficult for the delegation to
reply specifically to sonme of the Conmttee' s additional questions since it
had no representatives fromrelevant mnistries such as the Mnistry of
Justice who m ght, for exanple, have been able to answer M. Shahi's question
about the dissem nation of racist propaganda on the Internet. He would,
however, make sure that information on that question was included in the next
periodi c report.

40. Hi s del egation regretted that its replies had not entirely satisfied
M. Garval ov, although it had done its best to provide the Conmttee with the
desired clarifications. M. Garvalov had furthernore been surprised at the
del egation's use of the term"territorial mnority"; that term had been used
only when citing sources which had thensel ves enployed it. His delegation
woul d endeavour to enpl oy consistent term nology on each issue in its future
reports.

41. He was unfortunately not in a position to explain to M. Yutzis the
reasons for the greater hostility towards ethnic mnorities before 1985 and
after 1991 or to answer his questions about the proposed amendnents to the
Caravan Act. Those questions would be submtted to the Mnistry of Justice
and to the Mnistry of Housing, respectively, and answers woul d be provided in
the next periodic report of the Netherl ands.



CERD/ C/ SR. 1253
page 10

42. M. TILMANS (Netherlands), replying to M. de Gouttes, who had expressed
surprise that the Government of the Netherlands was continuing to subsidize
establ i shnments associated with racist parties, said that the possibility of
endi ng such grants and prohibiting access to public radio and television for
parti es di ssem nating racist propaganda was being consi dered by the
Parl i ament .

43. M. HALFF (Netherlands), answering a question concerning Frisian, said
that the | anguage was spoken exclusively by the inhabitants of the northern
provi nce of Friesland, who could use it freely as well as Dutch. The regiona
nature of the |anguage was connected with history and admi ni strative practice.

44, The CHAI RMAN comended the quality of the reports submtted by the
Net herl ands and the rermarkable spirit of cooperation that the State party had
al ways shown with a view to ensuring the inplenmentation of the Convention

45. M. DIACONU (Country Rapporteur) |ikew se wel coned the extrenely

i nteresting, constructive and substantive di al ogue held between the Committee
and the Netherl ands del egation. Judging fromthe legislation currently being
drafted to guarantee health care for the wives and children of illega
immgrants, the authorities were taking steps that met sone of the Conmittee's
concerns. They were also taking specific action against the activities of
raci st organi zati ons.

46. He urged the Netherlands authorities to consult non-governnent al
organi zations during the preparation of their periodic reports, in the sanme
way as other countries, wi thout fear of affecting the independence of the
NGOs. Those organi zations were sufficiently robust to maintain their

aut onony, and their viewpoints deserved to be taken into consideration

47. The Conmittee should stress a nunber of points in the dialogue with
States parties. The question of nationality sonetinmes gave rise to slightly
different interpretations, sone viewing it in the sense of national origin and
others in terms of citizenship. Enphasis should be placed on citizenship
whi |l e ensuring that the concept of national or ethnic origin was duly
reflected, in accordance with article 1 of the Convention

48. The Frisians could certainly be described as a |inguistic and historica
mnority, neeting all the relevant criteria accepted in Europe.

49. He thanked the del egation of the Netherlands and hoped that a
representative of the Mnistry of Justice would be present during the
consideration of the country's next periodic report.

50. The CHAI RMAN warmy thanked the del egation of the Netherlands for its
efforts to reply as fully as possible to the many questi ons put by the nenbers
of the Conmittee and for having contributed to a fruitful dialogue. He
announced that the Committee had thus conpleted its consideration of the
thirteenth periodic report of the Netherl ands.

51. The del egation of the Netherlands w t hdrew.

The neeting was suspended at 11.40 a.m and resuned at 11.45 a. m




CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1253
page 11

Revi ew of the inplenentation of the Convention in Antigua and Barbuda

52. The CHAI RMAN announced that Antigua and Barbuda had requested that the
review of the inplementation of the Convention in its territory be deferred to
the Committee's fifty-third session and had given the assurance that its
report would be submitted in tine for that session. |If he heard no objection
he woul d take it that the Commttee wi shed to grant the request.

53. It was so deci ded.

PREVENTI ON OF RACI AL DI SCRI M NATI ON, | NCLUDI NG EARLY WARNI NG MEASURES AND
URGENT ACTI ON PROCEDURES (agenda item 6) (continued)

Consideration of the situation in Bosnia and Herzegovi na

54. The CHAI RMAN sai d the Bureau reconmended that the situation in Bosnia
and Herzegovi na shoul d not be considered under agenda item 6 in the current
ci rcunmstances. Since the Governnent had not announced that a representative
woul d be sent, there could be no dialogue. He invited the nmenbers of the
Committee to give their views on the matter

55. M. RECHETOV recalled that, in the absence of a representative of the
country in question, the Commttee had in the past consulted the specia
rapporteurs of certain other rel evant bodies; he proposed that, for exanple,
the Conmttee should hear Ms. Rehn, in her capacity as Special Rapporteur on
the situation in Bosnia and Herzegovina, for it could hardly expect worthwhile
informati on fromrepresentatives that the country might send with reluctance.

56. The CHAI RMAN said he feared that by acting on M. Rechetov's proposal
the Committee would be setting a precedent; he recalled that article 9 of the
Convention required the Comrittee to rely in its work essentially on the
reports and information received from States parties. That did not, of

course, prevent it fromdrawi ng on other sources to supplenment the information
avail abl e, and the Commttee m ght wish to give some thought to that
suggesti on.

57. M. SHAHI shared M. Rechetov's concern. |If the Comrittee adhered
strictly to the terns of article 9 of the Convention to study the situation in
a country under the agenda itemon prevention of racial discrimnation, it

m ght well deprive itself of valuable information. The Committee should at

| east ask to hear from soneone who was well informed about the situation in
Bosni a and Her zegovi na.

58. The CHAIRMAN said that such a request had little chance of being heard,
but it could be transnitted and the Comrittee might wish to | eave until |ater
a deci sion on what action should be taken

59. M. van BOVEN said that he was not agai nst postponing consideration of
the situation in Bosnia and Herzegovi na, but urged that the question be kept
under agenda item 6. It should be remenbered that the Dayton Agreenent was
far frombeing given effect as it should, that segregation was still being
practi sed and that the Conmittee had received no reply to its proposals to




CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1253
page 12

assist in the inplementation of the Agreenment. He suggested that the
authorities of Bosnia and Herzegovi na shoul d again be contacted and advi sed
that the Comm ttee had not discontinued consideration of the situation in
their country. In the neantine, it should provide itself with the means it
| acked to undertake that review

60. M. de GOUTTES, referring to the various proposals made by earlier
speakers, suggested that the question of the situation in Bosnia and

Her zegovi na shoul d be kept under agenda item 6 and that the Comm ttee should
send the authorities of Bosnia and Herzegovina a letter to advise themthat
the situation in their country would be exanmi ned in August 1998 and to request
themto del egate representatives to participate in the proceedi ngs. Lastly,
the Committee could express the wish to be kept informed, if not by Ms. Rehn
who had been called upon to performother duties, then for exanple by

Ms. Haller, the Human Ri ghts Orbudsperson for Bosnia and Herzegovina. In any
event, the Committee's vigilance nust not be rel axed.

61. M. SHERIFIS recalled that, in paragraph 5 of its decision 2 (51) on
Bosni a and Herzegovina, the Committee had decided to remain seized of the
situation in Bosnia and Herzegovi na under its agenda item on prevention of
raci al discrimnation, and had expressed the wish that the State party
concerned shoul d be present at the next exam nation of that situation. The
State party had been duly infornmed of that decision but the Cormittee had thus
far received no reply.

62. As to the question of referring to a well-informed source, Ms. Rehn
even if no |longer exercising the same functions, was still the nost
appropriate person. |In the absence of a representative of the State party,

the Committee certainly nust be able to hear a reputed expert on the matter

63. The CHAIRMAN said that he was not very favourable in principle to the
idea of inviting a person from another body to take part in the Comrmittee's
di scussi ons, but he neverthel ess proposed that the Committee should study the
possibility.

64. M. YUTZIS proposed to draft a note outlining a way in which the
proposal s made by M. de Gouttes could be put into effect and enable the
Conmittee to remain actively vigilant and not sinply waiting for new
devel opnent s.

65. The CHAI RMAN wel coned that initiative. He proposed that the draft to be
prepared by M. Yutzis should be studied first by the Bureau and then by the
Conmi ttee.

66. It was so deci ded.

Consideration of the situation in the Denpcratic Republic of the Congo

67. M. BANTON (Country Rapporteur) recalled that as early as 1988 the
Conmittee had expressed concern about the situation in the country in
gquestion. Unfortunately, what had seened to be only a small cloud had becone
aterrible stormthat had dismantled civil society and had already |eft
mllions dead. It was generally felt that it would have been better for



CERD/ C/ SR. 1253
page 13

preventive neasures to have been taken fromthe very outset and it was
regrettable that the Organization of African Unity had not had nore effective
nmeans to use. The Conmittee now had only a small role to play on the

i nternational scene; the Security Council could dispose of the resources
needed and ot her bodi es had the necessary conpetence and experience.

68. Neverthel ess, the Cormittee had a duty to act and he proposed to draft a
declaration for transmttal to the conpetent bodies saying essentially that,
in the Comrittee's view, the United Nations should pursue its investigations
into human rights violations in the Denocratic Republic of the Congo and
enphasi ze the need to bring those responsible to justice; that consideration
shoul d be given to extending the mandate of the International Tribunal of
Arusha so that it could try the war crines and crines agai nst humanity
committed in the Denpocratic Republic of the Congo; and that the necessary
assi stance nust be provided, as a natter of priority, for the adm nistration
of justice in the country to ensure that it had a real judiciary which could
play its role in the restoration of public order. The declaration should be
included in the Cormittee's report to the General Assenmbly and shoul d be sent
to the conpetent bodies without waiting for the report to be published.

69. M. SHAHI said that the declaration should be sent to the appropriate
authorities as soon as possible. He referred M. Banton to a recent report by
Human Ri ghts Watch/ Africa which summarized the situation in the Denocratic
Republic of the Congo and contained recomendati ons addressed to the
Governnments of that country and Rwanda, and to representative bodies of the

i nternational comunity, such as the United Nations and the European Union

70. The CHAI RMAN pointed out that the investigative team sent by the
Security Council to the Denocratic Republic of the Congo had included one of
the nmenbers of the Cormittee and noted that there was a | ack of information
about the work of that mission. Perhaps the new Hi gh Conmm ssioner for Human
Ri ghts, Ms. Robinson, could clarify the matter for the Commttee and expl ain
the refusal of the CGovernnent of the Denobcratic Republic of the Congo to
cooperate. He further requested M. Shahi to consult with M. Banton and
expl ain what “appropriate authorities” he had in m nd

71. M. DIACONU said that he was not opposed to M. Banton's initiative but
poi nted out that the Denocratic Republic of the Congo was the theatre of human
rights violations of all kinds and that the Committee's ternms of reference
limted its field of action to manifestations of racial discrimnation. Care
woul d therefore have to be taken to select information of relevance to the
Conmittee, and that would be no easy matter because sone human rights

vi ol ations affected Rwandan refugees, sonme were perpetrated by Rwandans,

ot hers by Congol ese and still others, ainmed at Congol ese ethnic groups, were
comm tted by Congol ese and Rwandans ali ke.

72. Regar di ng the purpose of the declaration, he thought that, considering
the difficult stage reached in the dial ogue between the United Nations and the
Denocrati c Republic of the Congo, it would be better to address the text to

t he Hi gh Commi ssioner for Human Rights and ask her what action the

United Nations intended to take to deal with the situation. Another question
was when and how the Committee would have the possibility of establishing a



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1253
page 14

di al ogue with the new authorities, in connection with a periodic report
submtted by the Denocratic Republic of the Congo under article 9 of the
Conventi on.

73. M. de GOUTTES agreed fully with M. Diaconu that the Conmm ttee should
first address the High Commi ssioner for Human Rights. It also had every
interest in taking account of the work and decisions of the Conmmi ssion on
Human Ri ghts, which would |ikew se be seized of the question

74. The [ atest Human Ri ghts Watch bulletin contained sone information about
the new investigative team appointed by the Security Council follow ng the
set back of the earlier mssion. It appeared that the new m ssion had al so
made no progress and was in effect suspended. It would be worth asking the
H gh Comm ssioner for Human Rights for nmore precise information if, as he
hoped, M's. Robinson intended to participate in a neeting of the Conmttee
during the current session

75. M. VALENCI A RODRI GUEZ endorsed M. Banton's proposal. Regarding the
m ssion to the Denocratic Republic of the Congo established by the
Secretary-Ceneral of the United Nations, he indicated that he had net

M. Chigovera, a nenber of that m ssion, in New York in November 1997

M. Chigovera had told himthat, during their first visit to the Denocratic
Republ i c of the Congo, the menmbers of the nmission, who had asked to visit the
regi on where hunman rights violations had been conmitted and to hear from

wi t nesses, had not been authorized to do so and had remained in the capital
The results of their second visit would be put before the Comr ssion on Human
Rights at its next session

76. The CHAI RMAN t hanked M. Val encia Rodriguez for the updated information.
The Committee could request M. Banton to inquire about the results of the

m ssion and coul d al so ask the H gh Conmi ssioner for Human Rights to provide
information on the matter. It could express its deep concern about the
situation in the Denocratic Republic of the Congo.

77. M. van BOVEN said that the Comrittee currently knew very little about
the situation in the Denocratic Republic of the Congo and the Comm ssion on
Human Ri ghts woul d, of course, be neeting shortly. 1In that connection

M. Garretén had been appointed special rapporteur by the Conm ssion on Human
Ri ghts to nmake inquiries concerning the situation in the Denocratic Republic
of the Congo, and the Security Council had authorized the Secretary-Ceneral to
send an investigative teamto that country. M. Garretd6n was due to report on
the situation very soon

78. The CHAIRMAN said it would be useful for the Conmttee to obtain the
report and proposed that it keep pending the consideration of the situation in
t he Denocratic Republic of the Congo.

79. It was so deci ded.

Consideration of the situation in Kosovo

80. M. GARVALOV said that he was extremely concerned about the situation in
Kosovo. He felt that the Commttee should act as quickly as possible.




CERD/ C/ SR. 1253
page 15

81. The CHAIRMAN said that the Comrittee's secretariat had been in contact,
both in witing and orally, with the Yugoslav M ssion, which had confirned
that it would be sending a delegation to present its report on the

i npl enentati on of the Convention. He therefore suggested that the Conmittee
should wait for that presentation, scheduled for the followi ng week, to put to
t he Yugosl av del egation all the questions it w shed to raise.

82. It was so deci ded.

ORGANI ZATI ONAL AND OTHER MATTERS (agenda item 5) (continued)

M ssion of M. Yutzis to Guatemala

83. M. YUTZIS, presenting the report he had prepared on his mssion to
Guatemal a (CERD/ C/ 52/ M sc. 22), indicated that the report began by descri bing
the situation in the country after 36 years of civil war and the peace
agreenents signed on 19 Decenber 1996. The second part of the report
considered the positive aspects of the peace process that would contribute to
the inmpl ementation of the Convention. The third part reported on obstacles
and limtations to the peace process which affected the inplenentation of the
Convention. Lastly, in the fourth part, he drew various conclusions fromhis
m ssion. He pointed out that he had been provided with all the necessary
assistance in his work by the Governnent and by the Presidential Conm ssion on
Human Ri ghts. He had al so been able to neet nunerous representatives of the
i ndi genous conmuni ti es.

84. The situation in CGuatenala remai ned precarious, since it was difficult
to overcone three decades of war. Mreover, the fragility of the judicia
system and the grave economc difficulties were harnful to the inplenentation
of the Convention. Conflicts were likely to recur. |In the conclusion of his
report, he enphasi zed that clear-cut and operational mnmechanisms had to be
established to involve civil society and the indigenous sectors satisfactorily
and effectively in the inplenentation of the peace agreenents, and that the
Government should specifically reaffirmits determ nation to include the

i ndi genous peoples' pluralist vision and practice in the process of building
peace.

85. The CHAI RMAN suggested that the Commttee should draft a recommendati on
concerning the situation in Guatenala.

86. M. VALENCI A RODRI GUEZ supported the Chairnman's proposal. He endorsed
the concl usions of the report prepared by M. Yutzis and said he would Iike
nmore informati on about the persisting climte of violence and inpunity
referred to in chapter 111 of the report. The Governnment gave an assurance,
in particular, that the climte of violence had been dispell ed.

87. M. NOBEL commended the quality and structure of the report. He would
like to know the current position regarding the repatriation of the Maya
peopl e who had taken refuge in Mexico because of the civil war.

88. M. van BOVEN wel coned the report by M. Yutzis. He would like some
i nformati on about the results of the work of the truth and reconciliation
conmmi ssion set up after the civil war. Also, did M. Yutzis think that the




CERD/ C/ SR. 1253
page 16

qguestion of inmpunity tended to facilitate or hanper the peace process? Mny
of the indigenous people, who represented the majority of the popul ati on, had
been victinms of the civil war. What was their current status?

89. M. DIACONU thanked M. Yutzis for his report. He would like to know
how his terns of reference, nanely to assist the State party in the

i npl enentati on of the Convention, had been applied in practice. The report
sai d not hing about Cuatemal an | egislation. |If there was any
anti-discrimnation |egislation, was it adequate? Had the conclusions of the
report been communicated to the Governnment and, if so, had it provided any
reply? Lastly, he noted that the conclusions referred to the peace process.
In his view, they should have focused on the inplenentation of the Convention

90. M. de GOUTTES thanked M. Yutzis for having enphasi zed the probl em of
impunity and the difficulties encountered by the judiciary which hindered the
peace process. Those points were, in his view, relevant to the Convention

The report suggested that indi genous people did not have access to the justice
system and were mistrustful of it. The Committee should place enphasis on the
rel ati onshi p between indi genous people and the judiciary. Cbviously, there
were political difficulties that stemmed fromthe | ack of resources nmade
avai |l abl e by the Governnent for the adm nistration of justice.

91. M. SHERIFIS congratulated M. Yutzis on his report. Like

M. de Gouttes, he wished to underline the difficulties in the relationship
bet ween the various indigenous popul ations and the judiciary. What was the
situation of the Maya who had taken refuge in Mexico? He reconmended that the
di scussion on the situation in Guatenmal a should be pursued at a |later neeting,
since the quality of the report warranted it.

92. M. YUTZIS said that he had taken account of the fact that 85 per cent
of the popul ation was indigenous in drafting his report, which was oriented
towards the inplenmentation of the Convention

93. The CHAI RMAN proposed that the Committee should revert to the report
prepared by M. Yutzis at a | ater neeting.

94. It was so deci ded.

The neeting rose at 1.05 p. m




